
UNITED
NATION'

11 ()

• \'0 I)

o

~/

Economic'.ncl8ocI.1 Council
.- (,;

o "

Distr •
GENERAL

E/1986/WG.l/SR.2
18 April 1986 ,

'E

11

o

Jirst regular session, 1986 n

o
ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

I) o

SESSIONAL WORKING GROUP OF GOVERNMENTAL ~XPERTS ON THE IMPLEMENTATION
OF THE INTERNATI0NA;L COVENANT ON ECONOMIC, SOCIAL AND CULTURAL RIGHTS

SUMMARY RECORD OF ,THE 2nd MEETING

Held at Headauarters, New York,
on TUesday, 15 April 1986, at 10.30 a.m.~~

. ~

Chairman: Mr. RUIZ-CABAftAS (Mexico)

c CONTENTS

)/

') 1/

Consid€ration of reports submitted in accordance with Council resolution 1988 (LX)
by States' parties to then Covenant concerning rights covered by articles ~O to 12 0

i)1)

:::7'

0 c;=::;;~

\~

.!'
;~:.

0

This record is SUbject to correction. ,7

I/,
., ':) ~

. Corr~tions should be,submitted ih one of the .~rking languages. The; should
ebeset forth in a~memorandumand also inco~porated in a bopy o\~ the r~cord. :h:y
sho~ld be sent wit~in one week of the date-of this d~ument to the Chief, Offlclal
Records Editing Sgction, Department, of" Co.nference Services, roam DC2-750, 2 United
Nations Plaza. ~

'j,

~ny corrections ~o the records o~ the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendum, to be issued shortly after0th~ ~nd of the
session. 0' Cs Q. (,

86-55632
\\

9039S (E) (,

G



" E/1986/WG.l/SR.2
Eflglish
Page 2

i/

\\'l'tte meeting was called to order at 10.55 a.m."

1I

Z::::::I

CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL RESOLUTION 1988 (LX)
BY STATES PARTIES TO '!'HE COVENANT CONCERNING RIGHTS COVERED BY ARTICLES 10 TO 12

G Initial report of Venezuela (E,/1980/6/Add.38) .

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, Miss Pulido (Venezuela) ,took a place at the
table.

2. Miss PULIDO (Venezuela), introdu~ing her country'~ initial report concerning ))
rigbt~ covered by articles 10 ';;0 12 of the Covenant, said that V@nezuela had· ',' If
gradU;fh1y been incorporating improvements in its legi~lation with regard t~ th-t~)'
enjoYment and implementa~ion of economi~, social and cultutal rights. The National
Constitution containe,d specific norms to protect and~assist the family as the
fundamEmtai nucleus of society. The State had also incorporated into 'Us legal
system various special regulations aimed at protec~~ng family rights. Under the
Venezuelan Civil COde, both spouses in a marriage were ensured eaual rights and
responsibilities. The minimum eligible age for marriage was 14 years for women and
16 years for me~. Public health care for pregna~t women, newborn babies and
children was provided by the country's maternity services. In rural areas, such
care was given by rural health centres and mObile health units. Family planning,
which had begun in 1962, was an official policy of ,the Ministry of Health and
Social Assistance.

3. For children, a se~ies of integrated health q nutrition and education measures
hadcbeen taken, particularly for marginalized urban and rural children. Chlld care

~ ~centres were being provided for' working mothers who did not have creches available,
to them. In 1985, day care centres attached to ,the wo£kplace had taken care of
over 1,000 children. Certain regulations of the\Labour Code protected women
against dangerous, unhealthy or heavy work. Pregnant women had the right to take
leave sig weeks before and six weeks after tneir confin~ment, and a legal service
had been cr~~ted to protect working women who had been dismissed illegally because

c of pregnancy. Legislation was currently being stUdied whichwouldexten~maternity
leave.

4. 1'7- the past 25Y",ears, demand "for housing had accelerated dramatically because
of the migration of the rural population to the cities. Moreove~) Venezuela had
become a centre forlmmigratioh from other Latin American countries, a fact which
had created additioha1 pressure on housing and services and had led to an increase
in unemployment. The Government attached great importance to attenuating the
impact of those adverse economic" factors on the social rights of the less fortunate

• \,,~ vpopulatlon. ',,"(('.::0" \\
-;:0

5. Despite the aforementioned difficulties, prices had increased by only
12.5 per cent over the past year, less than "in pr~yious years, and ,unemployment had \1

stabilized at 12.9 per cent. In 1983, the infant Cmorta1ity rate, had been 39 per
\-

1,000. There was o~e ~spital hed per 367 inhabitant~_~ one doctor per 831 !?

inhabitants, and life expectancy was 6a.9 years. Although there remained much to
be done, efforts were being made to e~tend the rights)covered by articles 10 to 12
of the Covenant to the entire national territory.

~ "

I ...

\)



-----------------------
:"

17

I.')

E/1986/WG.l/SR.2
English
Page 3

o

--1.1

6. Mr. TEXIER (France) said that the Venezuelan report had, on the whole, been
satisfactory. Be asked whether the laws regarding family patrimony, referred to in
paragraph 1, appli3d eaually to all children, regardless of whether or not they
were born,out of wedl()Qk. Be i;elt that the regulation which stipulated that every
establishment employing more than 30 women hap to provide a c~eche (referred to in
paragraph 3 (m)) was very progressi.ve, and he wished to have more details on the
creches. With regard to the Adoption Act referred to in paragraph 8 (e), he
wonder~d ~hether ~he institution of adoption primar 11y involved Venezuelan
citizens, or whether children from other countries were also adopted.

7. Be asked for further details of the obligations described in paragraphs 11, 12
and 13 of the report. With regard to the set of norms for consumer protection
referred to in paragraph 20, it ~uld be interesting to know more about the
functioning of the Consumer Pro~ection Board, the administrative and jurisdictional
org~n established by the COnsumer Protection Act~

8. He expressed appreciation for the efforts of the Governmen~ to deal with the
housing difficulties occasioned by the rural-urban migration. Be would welcome
additional information about whether the social housing schemes had resulted in
less costly housing for the population. Be would also l!ke to know more about the
public hospital system, for example, whether it was free Of charge for low-income

i i
~ \\

C t zens anc:y)how it compared cin si:lfe with the private hospital sector. It would he
.useful to l~iarn how the Government was "dealing with the problem of immigration from
other Latin American countries, and to know what rights were guaranteed to foreign
Workers. .:-. ,.')

9. fir. BENDIX (Denmark) said, with respect to article 10, that he wondered
w~.ether the Venezt'-Jelan Government tf~s consider ing amending the Labour Act so as to
place w6ge-earnets on an eaual foo~iong with salar~earners and whether there were
any plans to extend maternity h~ave to fathers aloo. He also wished to know what
grounds were acceptable, under the Labour Act, for the dismissal of pregnant women
and whether employers could be,brought to court for wrongful dismissal'. He wished
to have BOme details regarding involuntary uMmployment under the COmpulsory Social

~ '/ 0 '
Insurance Act, referred to in paragraph 6 of the report.

D 10. With respect to article 11, he wondered whether the representative of
Venezuela could provide some details regarding that cduntry's inflation rate and
h~V it related it to the "undue price increases" referred to in paragraph 9.

'_J #

Paragt~ph 11 d~al\)with the responsibil~.;'ty of children to assist their parents and
grandparents and he wished to know whether the State assumed any respons~bility in
that regard. I)

"
J.l. With respect to article '12, the representat;.ve of Venezuela had referred to
the n~mbe~ of doctors and hospital beds available in the country. He wished to
have similar information regarding dentists and asked whether dental care started
with school-age qhildren. ~

12. Mrs. JIMENEZBUTRAGOERo (Spain) asked whether any changes were contemplated ip
the ov~rly protectionist legislation which seemed to close many areas of emPloymenf
to wom~n: She also wished to have more information on the NORVEN stamP1Feferred to
in paragraph 20 (e) and a~ked whether commercial firms were involved in the system.

I ...

((

f



I)

E/1986/WG.l/SR.2
English
'Page 4

13. Mr. MRACHKOV (Bulgaria) said that he would have preferred to have had more
statistical data in th~ report itself and more practical information on the
implementation of art~cles 10 to 12 of the Covenant. He agreed with the
representative of Venezuela that foreign debt and ~hecurrent international
economic situation could hinder the enj~ent of human rights and he wished to have
more information in that regard. (I

14. With respect to article 10, he wishec.\ to have more information on the divorce
rate as compared to the marriage rateoino)der to have a clear idea of the
stability of ~he basic unit of society, namely, thefamily.U pR

15~ He also reQuested more statistics on the inflationary trends in Venezuela and
the extent to which salary increases kept up with the rate of inflation. He also
wished to know more about the Consumer Protection Board referred to in
paragraph 20 G(C) and whether there were any legal guarantees to protect consumers.
He reQuested more infqrmation on free medical services and allowa~lces coverin~)

public health. If such services were not free, he wished to know what was the
maximum cost borne by the Government.

16. kt. POERSCHKE (German DemciCratic Republic) said that, where the report
~ referred to certain national legislation, he Would have liked to have seen the ~~xt U

of such laws. In other words, he wished to know what was the status" of the 0

"COvenant within Venezuela's legal system and whether it could be invoked in court
by someone who felt that ~~is or her economic, social or ,cultural rights had been

.violated. He also wondered whether there was I{Jy difference between the lecJal
status of nationals and that of non-nationals.

Q

. ~

17. It woul~~have

Protection 1(C~. had
the 1982 amendment

been helpful if the reference in paragraph 14 to the 1961 Family
been accompanied by the text of the~ Venezuelan Civil Code and
thereto.

'::J

•

18. Paragraph 22 stated ~hat housing mu~t meet certain minimum standards and he
~ished to know what those standards were and whether there wer~ any programmes to
control migrat~pn towards already over-populated areas. In addition, he wondered
whether the Venezuelan legal system protectad tenants against unreasonable rent
increases. .. . \\

i-;::'::'

0, :; " "

19. ~~AKOVLEV (un~?n of Soviet Socialist Republics) welcomed the positive
approach)f Venezuela in its effort,s to strengthen the COvenant and, to implement
its "'Prov'isions. That was true of many ci,eveloping co~nt:ries, unlike some~eveloped
courttries, such as the United States, which professed to "be in favour of the '
cp~omotion of human dghts,'~hile ignoring the provisiol1s of the Covenant.

20. ~nezuelan legislation consUtutec! great'progrei3s in en£uring the
implementation of social and economic rights and human rights in general. The
reporl~~ inaica~ed t!le very positive steps ~aken by the Government in' spite of the
olnfavC)urable e,~onomic situation in the country resulting from the international
economic crisis~ In th~t regard, he inQuired what impact that crisis had on the
implementation of social0and economic rights 'in vene~u~la, Fart~pularly those
provided for under articles 10 to 12 of the Covenant~ \, .

~,

I ...



E/1986/WG.l/SR.2
English
Page 5

(Mr. Yakovlev,; USS~)
o Q

~h.::c '':''
21. The policies end program~s carried Oilt by theC\Government in implementoting
arti~l~s 10 to 120 effectively guaranteed the enjoyment of tho~e ~'ights in

d " 0 ~

Venezuela. He did not agree with the opinion put forward by SOll)e countries that
human rights pertained only to individual:s and that Governments "had no role to play
in ensuring their implementation. SuCh a view was not in accordance with ,the'
provisions of the COvenant. In that connection, he asked how the Governaent of
Venezuela saw the role ot the State in developing countries and whether it wa~ at
all possible to ensure the enjoyment of social and economic rights without the
active assistance of the State. Be would welcome further information 6n how
Venezuelan legislation guaranteed eauality and prohibited diacrii1l1nation because of
~ace," sax, language or religion~1 Paragraph 3 (j) of the report \~tated that the
p~ior consent of the competent l~bour inspector was reauired for the dismissal of
pregnant women. '!'he reporting State sho~~d 'explain the g~ounds for dismissal in
such cases. Lastly, he, reauested additional information on legis:,.ation ancf'
practical measu~es to proteCt children against abuse, neglect and[~criminal acts.

),,\ .-,
22. Mrs. KIMATA (Japan) reauestedthe repOrting State to provide ba.sic statistics
on gross national income, salaries and wages, and the mortality rate,. It ~"Ould be "",.
interesting to know what general difficulties arose in implementing articles 10 c'

to 12, ()f the COvenant. . Refer\r ing to paragraph 3 (b) ',' of the report, she inauiL"ed
wi\at percentage of undertakings, businesses' and establbhments were not covere,d by
the Labour Act of 30 June 1983 and how they differed from those whichowere.

<I iI

o 23. Mr. BEN HAMIDA (Tunisia) said t~~t the Iteport of Venezuela provided much
useful information and demonstrated that the Government was making a considerable
effort to ensure the implementation of the rights under articles 10 and 12. It was '"
gratifyi~9 to note that the 'Venezuelan' Government clearly intended to continue to
ensure the effective exercise of human rights in spite of the problems caused by
the international' economic situation. '!'he legal provisions relating to protection
of the family, mothers ~ndchildrenwere impressive. In that regard, he reauested
detailed information on the legal responsibilities of parents in the upbringing of
children.

2~. The measures taken by Venezuela to ensure that the POPulation~wasadeauately

fed were also impressive. Referring to paragraph 20 (a) of the report, he inauired
whether the COsts, Prices and Salaty~Act of 2 July 1984 set forth guidelines to be
followed by the various ~ocial partners in collective bargaining wit~ regard to
salaries or whether it provl~ed that labou~telationswere a function of the
market. Additional information would be appreciated with regard to
consumer-protection legislation. In par€icular, the reportin~ State should explain
~~he function, composition and powers of the Oonsumet Protection Board referred to

in paragraph 20 (c) of the report. 'It would als0-:', be interesting to know what organ
was competent to monito~ the legality of the measures and decisions taken by the
Board and what recourse'consumers had against such measures and decisiOns.

c'

25. The efforts of the Venezuelan Government to implement the right to physical
and mental health for all citizens WQre commendable. The Working Group would
appreciate further informaUon on the pc'~li(*,of Venezuela concerning the use of

., narcotic drugs, the consumption of psychotropic s"bstance~, particularly by young.
~ people, and measures taken to eliminate il~egal drug trafficking.

'..) .

/ ...

()

!)
•• ':,\ "



o

o

Li

E/1986/WG.l/SR.2
English ~

Page 6

26~ The CHAIRMAN, speaking. as a member of the Working: GroUp, . expressed ",
sati"sfaction at the excellent· report submitted by the. Government lIof Venezuela.' He'
reauested further information on the extent to which the current economic situation
in Vene~uela affected the'implementation of the provisions 'of the Covenant for the
general \'population and what impact that situation had 'on living conditions. The .
rePorting State should also provide information on the objectives and scope of its
population policy. '.

" '

27. \Miss Pulido(Ven~zuela) withdrew.

Initial report of Madagascar (E/1980/6/Add.39L
6'

28. At the invitstion of the Chairman, ,Mr. Rakotozafy (MadagasCar) took a place at
the table.

29. Mr. Rakotozafy (Madagascar), introducing his' country's initial report
concerning articles 10 to 12 of the Covenant, said that it tried to define the
legal framework establIshed in Madagascar to protect· the family, mothers and
children, to promote the ri9~t of everyone to an adeauate standard of living and to
safeguard the right of everyone to enjoy the highest standard of physical and
mental health.

30. The Malagasy Constitution, promulgated on 31 December 1975, remained the basic
text and Title 11 concerned fundamental rights and duties. Bis Government had. ()

already described the nature of those rights and duties in the reports related to
various international human rights instruments, in particular the International
Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and the International Convention on the
Elim~nation of All Forms of Racial Discrimination.

31. Article 37 of the Malagasy Constitution/dealt with State protection for the
family and rights of inheritance. Article 12 of the Constitution obliged the State
to remove economic and social obstacles to eauality betweencitizenso

/1 x

32. The Malagasy Government had established an infrastructure, in particular'
through the appropriate Departments, for the implementation of those objectives,
which accurately reflect~d~the principles set forth in articles 10 to 12 of the
COvenant. The courts also ~layed a role in defending those rights.

<0\
33. The second report of Madagascar would provide ~ote information on those tOP~C8

and would include avail~ble statistics.

34. The present report was ~ntended primarily to pro~~de an outline of the legal
framework governing the areas related to articles l~\tQ 12. But he wanted to
reassure the Group of Experts that the dialogue initlated today would allow that
situation to be remedied in the future.

o
35. The CHAIRMAN"said that QUestions concerning the report of Madagascar would be
put at the afternoon meeting.

o
<:.:::-.

I ...

., t



. I)

D

(!

i)

~j

E/1986/WG.l/SR.2
English
Page 7

(The Cha irman)
G (\ a 0 IJ'

36., A~ its meet;i~.th~pre~lousafternooni' the ,Bureau 'had discussed the:~?~" .
reco..~at.iona the GrQ~p might ute.All the mem,bers of the Bureau h~~? been\~· .:::
concerned with th. probl,. ra18e~ by Mr •.Bendix concerning the expendit4re involved
in postpo!,~ngo reports.' Perhaps fl ~ecOlllmendat_ion Inthe Working Group's 'raPCi~
aight re!l~t,,the desire Qf .•mbars. to avoid such expenditur.e. \~. .

),. c ." ,. u

37. Some members of the Bureau )ad criticized the country reports as they ~~re

currently submitted. !bey hed t~ught that States should'provide additional
information on the difficulties encountered in:-the implementation of the Covenant. ,

c

38. Be had reauestedothe Rapporteur, tCgether with the;Secretary of the Working
Group, to provide a writte~ li8t of point8 for discussion and he invited the
members. of the Group to hand In-written sU9ge8~ions.

c • . - ~ • •

The meeting r08e a~ 12.50 p.m.

-- ./;

o

'0

)}

1I

(1

o


